Information for patients

Read this leaflet carefully before taking/using this medicine. This medicine has been prescribed for you personally. Do not pass it on to anyone else. It may harm them even if their symptoms are the same as vours.

Keep this leaflet. You may want to

read it again later.

# Tobrex® eye ointment

## What Tobrex eye ointment is and what it is used for

Tobrex eye ointment contains an antibiotic for the treatment of eye infections. This medicine requires a prescription and may only be used if it has been prescribed by a doctor.

#### information Additional aware of

Tobramycin, the antibiotic contained in Tobrex eye ointment, is not effective against all germs that cause eye infections. Incorrect use of this medicine may cause complications. Therefore, never use Tobrex eye ointment to treat other conditions or other people. Even if you later develop a new infection in your eye, do not use Tobrex eye ointment without obtaining a new prescription from your doctor.

Note for contact lens wearers

Do not wear contact lenses during treatment with Tobrex eye ointment. If your doctor allows you to wear them, take the lenses out before treatment and wait at least 15 minutes after treatment before putting them back in. Contact with soft contact lenses must be avoided.

Do not use Tobrex eye ointment

If you have a known or suspected hypersensitivity (allergy) to any of the ingredients of Tobrex eye ointment.

## Warnings and precautions

- If you experience allergic eye reactions such as stinging and swelling of the eyelid or redness of the eye, stop treatment and consult your doctor. Allergic reactions may take many different forms, from local itching or skin redness to severe skin reactions. These allergic reactions may also occur with other (local or systemic) treatments with an antibiotic of the same type (aminoglycosides). If you are using other antibiotics together with Tobrex eye ointment, ask your doctor for advice. This medicine may impair your
- ability to drive or use machines or tools. If you experience blurred vision or any other visual distur-bance after applying this medicine, you must not drive or use machines until these effects have worn off. Do not use Tobrex eye ointment for a prolonged period.

Tell your doctor if you have any other illnesses or allergies or are

- taking any other medicines (including non-prescription medicines) or applying any other medicines to your eye(s), particularly if they are • If you have or if you have ever had conditions such as myasthenia
- gravis or Parkinson's disease, ask your doctor for advice. Antibiotics of this kind may worsen muscle weakness. • There is only limited experience with Tobrex eye ointment in infants aged under 2 months. Tobrex eye
- ointment is therefore not recommended for use in infants aged under 2 months. Pregnancy and breast-feeding

## Only use during pregnancy or while breast-feeding with the express per-

mission of your doctor. How to use Tobrex eye ointment

There is only limited experience with

Tobrex eye ointment in infants aged under 2 months. Children aged 2 months and over.

adults and elderly patients Apply an approximately 1.5 cm ribbon of ointment to the affected eye 2 or 3 times daily unless instructed

otherwise by your doctor. In severe infections apply an approximately 1.5 cm ribbon of ointment every 3-4 hours until improvement.

If too much Tobrex ointment gets into your eye, rinse your eye with lukewarm water. Do not use any

more ointment until your next scheduled dose. Do not change the prescribed dos-

age yourself. If you think the effect of your medicine is too weak or too strong, talk to your doctor or pharmacist. If you forget to use Tobrex eye ointment, apply a ribbon of ointment as soon as you realize you have forgot-

ten to use Tobrex and then continue your treatment as scheduled. Do not apply a double dose to make up for the missed dose. It is important to

use Tobrex eye ointment regularly.

However, if you forget it once or more, continue treatment as prescribed until you have talked to your

If you are also using other eye medicines, wait 5 to 10 minutes between applying Tobrex eye ointment and other medicines.

## Possible side effects

If you notice side effects, do not stop treatment with Tobrex eye ointment without speaking to your doctor. If you have any concerns, please contact your doctor or pharmacist. You may experience the following side effects when using Tobrex eye

ointment:

Common (affects 1 to 10 in 100 users)

Effects on the eye: Discomfort, red-

Uncommon (affects 1 to 10 in 1,000 users)

Effects on the eye: Corneal inflammation, corneal abrasion (scratched eye), visual disturbance, blurred vision, eyelid redness, conjunctival swelling, eyelid swelling, pain, dry eye, eye discharge, itching, increased tear production.

Effects on the body: Hypersensitivity (allergic reaction), headache, hives, skin inflammation, eyelash loss, itchy skin, dry skin, lightening of skin.

The following side effects were experienced after introduction to the market:

Effects on the eye: Local allergic reactions in the eye, eye irritation, eyelid itching.

Effects on the body: Hypersensitivity reaction, skin rash, severe skin reaction (Stevens-Johnson syndrome), inflammatory skin changes (erythema multiforme). If you notice any side effects which

are not described here, contact your doctor or pharmacist.

## **Further information**

Do not use after the expiry date (= EXP) printed on the pack.

After treatment has ended, please return any remaining fluid to the location from which you obtained it (your doctor or pharmacist) so that it can be disposed of properly. Shelf life after opening

Once the tube has been opened, use within 4 weeks.

# Storage instructions

out of the reach of children. Additional information

Do not store above 25°C, and keep

To avoid compromising the sterility

of the eye ointment, do not touch the tube tip with your eyes or hands. Close the tube tightly immediately after use. Your doctor or pharmacist will be

able to give you more information. They have access to the full prescribing information. What Tobrex eye ointment con-

## Active substances 1 ml of Tobrex eye ointment con-

tains: 3 mg tobramycin

tains

Other ingredients

Tobrex eye ointment contains the

following other ingredients: Chloro-butanol (anhydrous), liquid paraffin and white soft paraffin.

Availability/pack sizes The product can be obtained in pharmacies with a doctor's prescription,

which may be used once. Pack size: 3.5 g tube **Manufactured by**Alcon Cusi, S.A.Camil Fabra, 58
08320 El Masnou (Barcelona) Espana/Spain for Novartis Pharma

AG Basle, Switzerland.

# 

Novartis Pharma AG, Basle, Switzerland This package leaflet was last

## reviewed by the Swiss Agency for Therapeutic Products (Swiss

- medic) in July 2020. This is a medicament A medicament is a product, which
- affects your health, and its consumption contrary to instructions is dangerous for you.
- Follow strictly the doctor's prescription, the method of use and the instructions of the pharmacist who sold the medicament. - The doctor and the pharmacist
- are experts in medicine, its benefits and risks. - Do not by yourself interrupt the
- period of treatment prescribed for you. Do not repeat the same prescrip-

tion without consulting your doctor. Keep medicaments out of reach

of children

Union of Arab Pharmacists

Council of Arab Health Ministers